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1       JUDGE HILLIARD:  On behalf of the Illinois

2 Commerce Commission I call Docket 12-582, Joyce Edwards

3 vs. Commonwealth.

4           Ms. Edwards, before we begin, are you ready to

5 proceed this morning?

6      MS. EDWARDS:  Yes, sir.

7      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  Is there anything we need

8 to discuss before we begin the hearing?  Do you

9 understand the procedures?

10      MS. EDWARDS:  If you wouldn't mind, if there is

11 something that you would like to go over in terms of

12 decorum, I'd appreciate it.

13      JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.  You're the complainant

14 so you go first.  You have the burden of proof.  If you

15 have any documents that you're going to want to make

16 part of the record, we're going to need to have three

17 copies to give to the clerk.  If you don't have those

18 copies with you, we'll make them before we begin the

19 hearing.

20      MS. EDWARDS:  Sir, with respect to that, I have

21 affidavits.  I don't have them with me.  I had planned

22 on presenting witnesses but they couldn't be here, so I

23 had planned on providing the Court with an affidavit

24 from these individuals.

25      JUDGE HILLIARD:  But you don't have it with you?
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1      MS. EDWARDS:  I don't.  And I'd like -- I guess

2 what I'm asking is if I may submit them at a later time.

3      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Do you have any other documents

4 you need to make part of the record?

5      MS. EDWARDS:  No, sir, just the affidavits.

6      JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.  Do you have any

7 problem with that, Mr. Goldstein?

8      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes, I do, Judge.  I don't know

9 what the affidavits are going to say.

10      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Here's what we're going to do:

11 Get your affidavits, send them to the clerk, the

12 original and -- it will be a total of three, the

13 original and two copies -- send a copy to me, send a

14 copy to Mr. Goldstein.  And then Mr. Goldstein is going

15 to have a chance to make any objections he has to the

16 affidavits in writing, and we'll give him two weeks to

17 do that after he receives the copies from you.  And then

18 you'll have a week after that if you want to respond to

19 whatever it is Mr. Goldstein has to say, if anything.

20 Okay?  And we'll hold the record open.

21           How long is it going to take you to get your

22 affidavits?

23      MS. EDWARDS:  I can do it within a week, your

24 Honor.

25      JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.  We'll give you one
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1 week to get your affidavits to the clerk in Springfield,

2 all right?

3      MS. EDWARDS:  Uh-huh.

4      JUDGE HILLIARD:  -- with a copy to me and a copy to

5 Mr. Goldstein.

6           All right.  We're going to take appearances,

7 and when I say that I just mean you identify yourself

8 for the record.  I want you to give a name and an

9 address to which we can send something and you'll

10 receive it.  After we do that we're go to swear in

11 anybody who is likely to be a witness, and that probably

12 includes you.

13           So would you state your name and an address

14 for the record, please.

15      MS. EDWARDS:  Yes, sir.  My name is Joyce Edwards.

16 My mailing address is 7310 South Constance Avenue in

17 Chicago, Illinois 60649.  A telephone number for me

18 would be 312, area code, 371-6005.

19      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  For Commonwealth Edison Company,

20 Mark L. Goldstein, 3019 Province Circle, Mundelein,

21 Illinois 60060.  My telephone number is (847)949-1340.

22 And with me this morning is Erin Buechler of ComEd as

23 well as our witness Erica Rios.

24      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  Would anyone who is likely

25 to testify here today please raise your hand and be
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1 sworn.

2                     (Witnesses sworn.)

3      JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.  Ms. Edwards, as I

4 indicated, you go first and you need to substantiate the

5 allegations in the complaint.  Try to speak up so that I

6 can hear you and so that the court reporter can take

7 down what you're saying and so the people from ComEd can

8 hear you as well.

9         OPENING STATEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE COMPLAINANT

10      MS. EDWARDS:  Okay.  Thank you, your Honor.

11           This complaint against Commonwealth Edison

12 arises out of a situation whereby my mother, Willie Lou

13 Edwards, attempted to have her electric service

14 transferred into an account bearing her name.  She lived

15 in a senior residential building at 1380 Ring, R I N G,

16 Road in Calumet City, Illinois.

17           When Ms. Edwards -- Willie Edwards -- first

18 moved into the Victory Centre Senior Residential

19 Apartments, both gas and electric bills were a part of

20 the rent, whereby she wrote one check each month to the

21 facility and that took care of her services.  Sometime

22 in or about 2010 the building changed its rule so that

23 each resident then was responsible for their electric

24 service only.  This did not impact the situation with

25 Peoples Gas or any other utility, just simply ComEd.  So
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1 the people in the building scrambled around to call

2 ComEd and get individual accounts in their names.

3           When my mom attempted to do that, she was met

4 with great frustration.  At the time my mom was 80 years

5 old.  It was difficult for her to wait on the telephone

6 as long as you need to do sometimes to speak with

7 Commonwealth Edison.  Finally she had friends who lived

8 in the building who well understood what she was trying

9 to do because they themselves had to do the same thing,

10 contact Commonwealth Edison to have them convert the

11 service into her name.  All of those attempts failed.

12 And they were told, have somebody in your family -- have

13 your daughter call, have your son call, or somebody in

14 your family call Commonwealth Edison to try to get this

15 accomplished for you.

16           That's where I came in.  I called Commonwealth

17 Edison, explained the situation to them, provided them

18 with my mom's age, her income, her status, and basically

19 was told after several attempts to try and get them to

20 understand what was going on -- was told that she would

21 need to have a cosigner in order to get her electric

22 service.

23           We discussed it.  I thought, that doesn't make

24 any sense, I will contact the Commerce Commission.  And

25 that's how this case all started.  I did contact the
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1 Commerce Commission, and I spoke to a gentleman, trying

2 to explain the situation to him.  He said let's call up

3 ComEd.  He got ComEd on the phone.  We talked to ComEd.

4 It was clear that ComEd, based on my mother's age,

5 rejected the application for services in her name.  It

6 was clear that ComEd and now the Commerce Commission

7 suggested that she get a power of attorney to manage her

8 electric service even though she at all times maintained

9 paying her rent timely, she maintained paying her

10 telephone bill timely and other bills that she had for

11 herself.

12           It was suggested at some point during

13 conversations with Commonwealth Edison that without a

14 power of attorney that they would not -- and they

15 continued to deny putting the bill for services in her

16 name after the building converted.

17           Commonwealth Edison somehow during the

18 conversation now alleges that I said that I would take

19 the bill -- the bill in my name.  At that point during

20 the conversation there was no bill.  There had never

21 been a bill presented to her for payment with any amount

22 on it at all.  During the conversation with Commonwealth

23 Edison, I indicated to them that I would go back to

24 speak with her about the power of attorney.  I was

25 willing to do almost anything to help in this situation
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1 for my mother, because it frustrated her so deeply.

2           We went back, we talked about the power of

3 attorney among other siblings and other people in my

4 family and they thought that it was ridiculous that she

5 should need a power of attorney for electric service.  I

6 then called Commonwealth Edison back, expressed to them

7 that there would be no power of attorney and again, we

8 needed to get the service -- get her service in her name

9 because all she wanted to do was simply pay her bill.

10           Commonwealth Edison's retort at that point was

11 you're going to pay the bill.  You assumed the billing

12 when -- I'd like to retract that and back up one step,

13 there was something else that happened in between that.

14           We ended that conversation not knowing what

15 was going on.  We thought that we would receive from

16 Commonwealth Edison some explanation why are they

17 denying this woman an electricity account?  Was it based

18 on age?  They did express concerns that she was at an

19 age where she needed help.  Was it based on credit

20 information?  We could only surmise based on the

21 conversations with them that that's what this was about.

22           We never received any communication from

23 Commonwealth Edison explaining the rejection or why they

24 refused to put the service in her name.  We even

25 attempted to connect Commonwealth Edison with the
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1 building manager so that she could explain to them what

2 the building required and what was going on there, to

3 know avail, nothing helped.

4           The next thing that happened was that I

5 received a bill at my address, here in Chicago on

6 Constance Avenue, that had two amounts expressed in the

7 bill.  That bill indicated that I myself had used

8 electric service and I was to pay Commonwealth Edison --

9 I think it was $46.  The second amount on the bill that

10 they had my name on, sent to my personal address in

11 Chicago, had an amount of over $1,000 -- $1,700, that it

12 did indicate at that time that it was for services on

13 Ring Road.  This was very upsetting, of course.  I had

14 no idea that Commonwealth Edison could arbitrarily take

15 somebody else's bill, assign it to an address in a

16 different city, and demand payment or else, they said at

17 that time my electric service was in jeopardy.

18           Numerous phone calls, persisted, and I

19 continued to pay the bill at my own home address in

20 hopes that Commonwealth Edison would not disconnect my

21 service due to this problem.

22           It's my position today that Commonwealth

23 Edison engendered this whole situation because they

24 discriminated against an 80-year-old woman who simply

25 wanted the account in her name so she could pay her
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1 bills.  She had the means relative to pay the bills.

2 She was enrolled in numerous programs for senior

3 citizens who needed utilities and there was a way to pay

4 for these things.  She was precluded from doing any of

5 that based on the rejection of her application to have

6 her service converted to her name.  All she wanted to

7 do -- and she expressed this to Commonwealth Edison on

8 numerous occasions -- was simply pay her bill.

9           It's my contention today, your Honor, that

10 Commonwealth Edison is in error to try and lift that

11 bill and take it and put it in the lap of somebody else

12 who did not use the service, who is not a guarantor on

13 any document that Commonwealth Edison has.  I've never

14 assumed responsibility for any bills with Commonwealth

15 Edison not at my residence.  I don't have a guarantee

16 signed, a cosigner signed, or any documentation signed

17 with Commonwealth Edison that says that they should

18 assume that I would pay a bill, a bill that we hadn't

19 even seen or knew nothing of until after my making

20 contact with them to try and explain the situation to

21 them to have them correct the account.

22           Your Honor, the affidavits that I plan to

23 present include testimony from neighbors of my mom's who

24 also tried to call and talk to Commonwealth Edison about

25 the problem, who lived in the building at 1380 Ring Road
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1 at the time and tried to assist her with trying to get

2 this problem resolved.  They're going to tell you about

3 what she was told on the phone, how it reduced her to

4 tears, how she was frustrated, how she was told that she

5 had to have a daughter, a son, a relative call them back

6 before they would do any business with her at all.

7           Further, your Honor, I looked at the answer to

8 the complaint.  Commonwealth Edison says it has no basis

9 for any -- to admit any of the allegations in the

10 complaint, which is not true.

11      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Judge, you know, I've been pretty

12 patient about the incredible amounts of irrelevant and

13 hearsay discussions that Ms. Edwards has engaged in, but

14 if she's going to start talking about the answers to the

15 complaint, I think that goes way too far.

16      JUDGE HILLIARD:  I think she's entitled to make

17 whatever comments she wants to make and you're entitled

18 to cross-examine when she's through and you can put on

19 your own evidence when she's through with putting on her

20 evidence.

21           You can continue, ma'am.

22      MS. EDWARDS:  Thank you, sir.

23           The point is is that when I requested the

24 evidence from Commonwealth Edison that they rely on in

25 their answer, saying that the reason that they put the
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1 bill in my name or gave me the billing was that in a

2 telephone conversation I actually said this, I asked

3 Commonwealth Edison to produce a copy of anything that

4 they had that supported that and they provided nothing

5 because there is nothing that says that I agreed to

6 assume some unknown amount to have it billed to me at my

7 home address and jeopardize my own electric service,

8 your Honor.

9           So again, I don't think that there's any

10 precedent in the Commerce rules, regulations, and

11 anywhere else that says that they have a right to do

12 that.  I have asked for what standing or what basis do

13 they believe that they have a right to do this and I've

14 been presented with nothing from Commonwealth Edison in

15 that regard, just a refusal to do the right thing,

16 that's it, and that would have been to put the account

17 in this woman's name as she requested so she could

18 simply pay her bill.

19      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Is that it?

20      MS. EDWARDS:  Yes, sir.

21      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  Can I ask you a couple of

22 questions?

23      MS. EDWARDS:  Yes, sir.

24      JUDGE HILLIARD:  She lives in a senior facility,

25 senior housing?
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1      MS. EDWARDS:  I need to qualify that.  Just this

2 past May my mother passed away, so she no longer lives

3 at 1380 Ring Road.  But, yes sir, during the time of all

4 of this, the name of the facility was Victory Centre, a

5 residential facility for senior citizens.

6      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Did she have her own apartment?

7      MS. EDWARDS:  She did, Apartment 320.

8      JUDGE HILLIARD:  And did anyone else have a problem

9 like she had establishing an account?

10      MS. EDWARDS:  We didn't hear of anybody.  As a

11 matter of fact, that was one thing that aggravated my

12 mom, because when they all got in groups one person

13 would talk about the services that she got and be it

14 cable, be it whatever, and my mom could, you know, not

15 participate except to say, well, they refused to give me

16 my account.

17      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  And you live on Constance

18 Street in Chicago?

19      MS. EDWARDS:  Yes, sir.

20      JUDGE HILLIARD:  And what kind of a residence is

21 that?

22      MS. EDWARDS:  It's a house.

23      JUDGE HILLIARD:  And how long have you lived there?

24      MS. EDWARDS:  I need to qualify again.  At the

25 beginning of these proceedings I lived at 9146 South
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1 Constance Avenue.  I have since moved.  I now reside

2 at 7310 South Constance Avenue.  It is a house, a

3 single-family house.

4      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  How long had you lived at

5 the other address?

6      MS. EDWARDS:  I had lived at 9146 Constance for a

7 little over 5 years.

8      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  So well before any of this

9 happened?

10      MS. EDWARDS:  Oh, yes sir.  And I'd also like to

11 qualify by saying that up until I made communications

12 with Commonwealth Edison, my electric bill was paid to

13 the letter.  I did not owe Commonwealth Edison anything.

14 My bills were paid.

15      JUDGE HILLIARD:  And what's the current status of

16 the bill for your personal residence?

17      MS. EDWARDS:  I've not been billed.  I paid the

18 last bill at the 9146 South Constance residence.  I am

19 hoping to resolve this.  I've been told by Commonwealth

20 Edison that they can't even transfer my service.  I've

21 been told that until I advise them of this proceeding

22 today -- And they have a note on my account that's

23 holding my account in abeyance until this is resolved so

24 that they can even now transfer my service if you will

25 from 9146 to 7310 Constance.  So right now, your Honor,
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1 I am not clear on what my status is with Commonwealth

2 Edison.

3      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I think her status will be quite

4 clear after we present our side.

5      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  Let me ask a few questions

6 and then you get to do your part.

7           How long have you lived at your new address?

8      MS. EDWARDS:  For about four-and-a-half weeks.

9      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  The way this proceeds is

10 the Company is entitled to ask you questions about your

11 testimony, so Mr. Goldstein please ask the questions if

12 you have.

13      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I guess I just have one or two,

14 Judge.

15                     CROSS-EXAMINATION

16 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

17      Q.   You had a three-way conversation with ComEd

18 and somebody from the Commerce Commission, did you not,

19 with respect to establishing service for your mother's

20 residence; is that correct?

21      A.   No, sir, not entirely.  I had several

22 conversations, more than one three-way conversation,

23 first of all.  And the conversation was always, at all

24 times, not about establishing new service but simply the

25 service was already on and having the service being
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1 billed to the person living in the apartment.

2      Q.   That's fine.  You've seen the affidavit of

3 Ms. Rios that was attached to the ComEd answer to the

4 complaint, did you not?

5      A.   I did.

6      Q.   And you saw that there was a three-way

7 conversation between you, Mr. Ruiz from the Commission,

8 and then Ms. Rios from ComEd on March 6th, 2012.  Do you

9 have any dispute that a three-way conversation actually

10 took place on that date?

11      A.   I cannot for certain say that it was

12 March 6th, but I can say I did participate in a

13 three-way conversation with a supervisor -- I was told

14 it was a supervisor at the Commerce Commission, a

15 Mr. Ruiz from the Commerce Commission.  It was a

16 supervisor from ComEd, actually.

17      Q.   And on that March 6th, 2012 date or whatever

18 that date was that you're sort of unclear about where

19 there was that three-way conversation, did your mother

20 ever get on the telephone during the course of that

21 conversation?

22      A.   I'm not sure.

23      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have nothing else, Judge.

24      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  Do you want to call a

25 witness?
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1      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes, I would like to call --

2      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Excuse me, you don't have any

3 documents or anything else you want to say at this time,

4 right?

5      MS. EDWARDS:  No, your Honor, I don't.

6      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  So your case in chief has

7 been presented and as I understand it you're resting.

8 Now the Company can present their case.

9           Please call your first witness.

10      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I call Erica Rios, Judge.

11      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Ms. Rios, you've been previously

12 sworn.

13                     DIRECT EXAMINATION

14 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

15      Q.   All right.  Ms. Rios, would you state your

16 title with Commonwealth Edison Company?

17      A.   I'm a customer relations business analyst.

18      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Please speak up so that everybody

19 can hear you.

20 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

21      Q.   And how long have you been employed by ComEd?

22      A.   I've been at ComEd for 14 years.

23      Q.   And how long have you been a business analyst?

24      A.   Almost two years.  It will be two years in

25 October.
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1      Q.   And could you generally describe your duties

2 as a business analyst for ComEd?

3      A.   We handle complaints via informals from the

4 ICC, Better Business Bureau, the Attorney General

5 office, we handle any executive complaints, and as well

6 with the Commerce we handle what's previously known as

7 three-way conversations, where the Commerce Commission

8 will call the telephone company with us and try to

9 resolve it over the phone with a customer.

10      Q.   And so you have occasion to speak with people

11 at the Commerce Commission regarding informal

12 complaints; is that correct?

13      A.   Correct, every day.

14      Q.   Are you familiar with the account of Joyce

15 Edwards?

16      A.   Yes.

17      Q.   And how did you become familiar with it?

18      A.   I was the one that answered the phone when he

19 called.

20      JUDGE HILLIARD:  When who called?

21 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

22      Q.   When who called?

23      A.   When the Commerce Commission called.

24      Q.   And who called you from the Commerce

25 Commission?
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1      A.   It was Carlos Ruiz.

2      Q.   And you've dealt with him on many occasions

3 before?

4      A.   Yes.

5      Q.   And since?

6      A.   Yes.

7      Q.   And you prepared an affidavit that was part of

8 the answer to the complaint, did you not, in response to

9 Ms. Edwards' complaint at the Commission, did you not?

10      A.   Yes.

11      Q.   And you had a three-way conversation with

12 Ms. Edwards, Mr. Ruiz, and yourself on March 12th --

13 March 6th, 2012, did you not?

14      A.   Correct.  Yes.

15      Q.   Could you describe what was said by the

16 parties on that three-way call?

17      A.   Okay.  The conversation was in regards to her

18 mother's account.  Her mother lived at that address,

19 the 1308 Ring Road.  Her mother was never part of the

20 conversation.  I explained to her that --

21      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Explained to who?

22 BY THE WITNESS:

23      A.   I explained to Ms. Edwards as well as the

24 Illinois Commerce Commission that I could put service in

25 her mother's name, I needed to speak with her.  Nobody
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1 can put service in anyone else's name without their

2 permission.  ComEd does all of their business over the

3 phone and I could have done that.  She informed me that

4 her mother was ill and was not able to do that and she

5 wanted to establish the service in her name.  She

6 provided me with her Social Security number.  I asked

7 her if she wanted the bill mailed to her home address or

8 the residence where her mother stated she --

9      JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.  Now, the "her" you

10 keep referring to is Ms. Edwards?

11 BY THE WITNESS:

12      A.   Ms. Edwards, yes.  She was the only one on the

13 call.  It was myself, her and Carlos Ruiz from the

14 Commission.  Ms. Edwards informed me that she did not

15 want the bills to be mailed to her house, that she

16 wanted it mailed to her mother's address because they

17 were paying their niece to collect the mail, take care

18 of the bills, so on and so forth.  I informed

19 Ms. Edwards and the Commission that I could establish a

20 new account.  She told me that her mother was there from

21 about March of 2011 to current, and I explained to her

22 at that time that we would be back billing her for one

23 year because that's all we could back bill for.  She

24 understood and the call pretty much ended.

25
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1 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

2      Q.   All right.  As a result of that call the

3 account was placed in Joyce Edwards' name; is that

4 correct?

5      A.   Correct.

6      Q.   Let me show you what's been marked as ComEd

7 Exhibit No. 1.  Do you have that in front of you?

8           Could you describe what that exhibit is?

9      A.   This is an activity statement.  It has all the

10 customer's information, their account number, their

11 name, the address, if any deposits were requested.  It

12 has the monthly billing period, how much it was and if

13 any payments were made.

14      Q.   And whose name is the account holder?

15      A.   Joyce A. Edwards.

16      Q.   And what was the address on that activity

17 statement?

18      A.   1380 Ring Road, Apartment 320, Calumet City,

19 Illinois 60409.

20      MS. EDWARDS:  Your Honor, may I enter an objection

21 at this point?

22      JUDGE HILLIARD:  What's your objection?

23      MS. EDWARDS:  I've not seen this activity statement

24 before.  I've never lived at 1380 Ring Road, so I don't

25 understand how this has to do with me at all.
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1      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Well, this is a -- I think this is

2 one of the types of documents that their company

3 generally presents in cases of this kind.  It's an

4 official business record of the company.

5           When this lady is through testifying on direct

6 examination you can cross-examine her about the

7 document, but these are the types of documents that they

8 generally present at these hearings.

9      MS. EDWARDS:  I understand that, your Honor.  My

10 objection is simply that --

11      JUDGE HILLIARD:  You didn't see it before now?

12      MS. EDWARDS:  One, and secondly, your Honor, it has

13 erroneous information on there.  It's addressed to Joyce

14 Edwards, 1380 Ring Road, at Apartment 320.  I've never

15 at no time have I lived --

16      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Judge, she's already testified to

17 that.

18      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Stop.  I want to respond to her

19 question.  You've indicated that your mother lived at

20 1380 Ring Road.  She has testified about a conversation

21 that she allegedly had with you where you directed the

22 bill be sent to this address.  Now, that may or may not

23 be true, and you can cross-examine her about it when

24 she's through testifying, but she's entitled to talk

25 about that conversation and she's entitled to say what
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1 she remembers to have been said.

2      MS. EDWARDS:  Yes, sir.

3      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Go ahead.

4 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

5      Q.   Looking at the ComEd Exhibit No. 1, Ms. Rios,

6 the name on the account is in Joyce A. Edwards and the

7 address is what on the account?

8      A.   1380 Ring Road, Apartment 320, Calumet City,

9 Illinois 60409.

10      Q.   And to your knowledge was there ever an

11 account at that Ring Road address in the name of Willie

12 Edwards?

13      A.   There was not.

14      Q.   All right.  And what was the balance on that

15 account at 1380 Ring Road, Exhibit 1?

16      A.   Well, the total billing was $488.52, that's

17 for approximately one year's worth of time.

18      Q.   And that was from March 2011 to March 2012,

19 approximately?

20      A.   Correct.

21      Q.   And let me show you what's been marked as

22 ComEd Exhibit No. 2.  That's another account activity

23 statement, is it not?

24      A.   Correct.

25      Q.   And in whose name is that account activity
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1 statement and at what address?

2      A.   This account activity statement is also for

3 Joyce Edwards at 7310 South Constance Avenue, Chicago,

4 Illinois 60649.

5      Q.   And Exhibits 1 and 2, ComEd Exhibits 1 and 2,

6 those are business records of Commonwealth Edison

7 Company, are they not?

8      A.   Yes.

9      Q.   And they're kept in the ordinary course of

10 ComEd's business, are they not?

11      A.   Yes.

12      Q.   Now, with respect to ComEd Exhibit No. 2, what

13 is the current balance on that account?

14      A.   The current balance on this account as of

15 August 2013 is $1,741.32.

16      Q.   And that's far more than the $488.52 that was

17 transferred in on that account, is it not?

18      A.   Correct.

19      Q.   All right.

20      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Go ahead.

21      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I guess I have nothing else, Judge.

22 I would move into evidence ComEd Exhibits 1 and 2.

23      MS. EDWARDS:  Your Honor, I would object to both of

24 these exhibits.

25      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  What's the basis for your
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1 objection?

2      MS. EDWARDS:  I've stated the objections relative

3 to Exhibit 1.  Regarding Exhibit 2, I have no idea what

4 this is.  I have never seen this before.  I don't

5 know -- I have questions about the exhibit that I'd like

6 to put to the witness.

7      JUDGE HILLIARD:  You can do that.

8      MS. EDWARDS:  Before it's admitted?

9      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Yes, please do so.

10      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Is it for a ruling, Judge?

11      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Pardon me?

12      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Is it for a ruling on it, Judge?

13      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Yeah, she's entitled to inquire

14 about the exhibits before I make a ruling.

15           So go ahead and cross-examine the witness

16 about these documents or anything else she had to say.

17      MS. EDWARDS:  Thank you, your Honor.

18                     CROSS-EXAMINATION

19 BY MS. EDWARDS:

20      Q.   Ms. Rias -- Rios, I beg your pardon, first of

21 all, how much -- On Exhibit 2, you're saying the balance

22 is $1,741.32.  How much of that balance is generated

23 from 1380 Ring Road?

24      A.   $488.52.

25      Q.   Only?
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1      A.   Correct.

2      Q.   So you're saying that somehow a billing

3 electric service to what address incurred about 12 --

4 $1,300?  Where did the 12 -- Where did this billing come

5 from?

6      A.   The rest is at your residence.  And I'll

7 explain:  An activity statement is a two-year activity

8 statement, so this activity statement is from September

9 of 2011 until current.  It has on there your billing

10 period, from what month to what month, it has your

11 electric service charges, it has any late payments, and

12 under the credit column are any payments that have been

13 made to the account.

14      Q.   So you're stating for the record that billing

15 to Joyce Edwards at 9146 -- because you wouldn't really

16 have billing for 7310, you placed my new address on

17 there, so I just really even hadn't received a bill

18 yet -- but you're stating for the record that at

19 least 12 or $1,300, everything except for $488.52, was

20 generated at my address at 9146 Constance?

21      A.   This is for your current address and any

22 previous -- The transfer charge of $488.52 is coming

23 from the 1380 Ring Road apartment.  The rest is from

24 your address and/or any other transfers that you may

25 have had from the 7310 Constance.
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1      Q.   One other thing, has Commonwealth Edison

2 issued a bill to Joyce Edwards to this effect?

3      A.   You should get a bill every single month.

4 Every customer gets a bill every month.

5      Q.   Again, my question is has Commonwealth Edison

6 issued a bill that shows that Joyce Edwards owes them

7 $1,200 from some address and that owing on 1380 Ring

8 Road is $488.52?

9      A.   That should have all been on your bill, yes.

10      MS. EDWARDS:  Your Honor, I would like to state for

11 the record that we will need to bring in additional

12 exhibits, those being the bills from Commonwealth Edison

13 that are contrary to what Ms. Rios is testifying here

14 today.

15      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Judge, you know --

16      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Hang on a second.  Let me find out

17 where she's coming from.

18           You're going to bring in your own bills?

19      MS. EDWARDS:  The bills that I've received from

20 Commonwealth Edison, yes, that will show that this

21 balance of $1,741 is generated from 1380 Ring Road and

22 not from any residences that I had.  They have not one

23 time billed $488.52 for the billing at 1380 Ring Road,

24 nowhere has that ever been expressed.

25      JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.  As long as you're on
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1 the subject, they are indicating that the amount of the

2 bill from the Ring Road address is $488.

3      MS. EDWARDS:  Uh-huh.

4      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Do you agree that the balance of

5 the bill is generated from your --

6      MS. EDWARDS:  I do not --

7      JUDGE HILLIARD:  -- one of your residences?

8      MS. EDWARDS:  -- because if it were it would have

9 been paid.  I absolutely do not agree with that.  I have

10 never received a bill from Commonwealth Edison for any

11 amounts like this, ever.  And the best way I can prove

12 that is to provide the Court with the bills that I have

13 received from Commonwealth Edison to show that.

14           I am saying that this is an error, that the

15 $1,741.32 is the billing from 1380 Ring Road, that at no

16 time were we ever talking about $488.52 being at issue

17 here before today.

18      JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.  Did you have something

19 you wanted to say, Mr. Goldstein?

20      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes, Judge.  If we're going to have

21 additional affidavits and additional bills, it's hard to

22 know what the purpose of this evidentiary hearing today

23 is.  You know, Ms. Edwards had every opportunity to

24 bring in the affidavits, to bring in the bills, and we

25 could have a discussion today about all of this.
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1      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Well, I think her contention is

2 that she hasn't seen these exhibits before this and that

3 these exhibits which purport to be records of the

4 Company are inconsistent with the bills that she's

5 received.  On its face that's not an unreasonable

6 contention.  If she contends that it's true, you're

7 entitled to respond to whatever she produces, but I

8 think she's entitled to make it part of the record, and

9 it's her assertion that essentially she is surprised by

10 the assertions the Company is making today and I think

11 she's entitled to respond to that in writing.  If that

12 involves us coming back here again for a further

13 proceeding, that might be necessary.  But I think the

14 first thing to do is ask her to produce the bills and

15 then you can tell me whether or not you think that your

16 response can be in writing or whether or not you want --

17      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  She's also going to have to present

18 the payments made for this two-year period, Judge, to

19 see how that matches up to the ComEd activity statement,

20 because what she's really doing is questioning the ComEd

21 activity statement.

22      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Well, I think that's probably

23 correct.  She's entitled to present the documentary

24 evidence that she can provide that contradicts what

25 Commonwealth Edison's evidence is and you're entitled to
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1 make appropriate comments or responses to that evidence.

2           All right.  Now, do you have anything else you

3 need to put in today?  Do you want more questions of

4 your witness?

5      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I don't know, is Ms. Edwards

6 finished with her questioning of the witness?

7      MS. EDWARDS:  No, sir, I'm not.

8      JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.  I'm a little out of

9 order.  Go ahead and ask the witness.

10      MS. EDWARDS:  I beg your pardon, your Honor, it's

11 my fault, I'm sure.

12 BY MS. EDWARDS:

13      Q.   Ms. Rios, the other question that I have for

14 you is you were not the first supervisor that spoke in a

15 three-way conversation with the Commerce Commission with

16 me on the telephone, were you?

17      A.   That day I was.

18      Q.   That day.

19      A.   Well, let me restate that.  I don't know who

20 else you may have spoken with.  I spoke to you one time

21 with Carlos Ruiz that day.

22      Q.   Very good.  That answers my question.

23           There is another supervisor that we spoke to

24 regarding this case.

25      A.   When you say "we" that's not me.



60

1      Q.   The "we" would be Carlos and myself.  There

2 was another supervisor which I thought would have been

3 here today instead of you because that supervisor had in

4 depth conversation about this.  I clearly deny that I

5 ever told you that you -- or you even explained that

6 this information in your affidavit, that one, you

7 explained that Commonwealth Edison would bill her from

8 March 2011 to March 2012, that was never part of the

9 conversation.  And secondly, you said that I agreed to

10 have the service placed in her name to be billed for

11 this service.  When you say I agreed, what did you mean

12 by that?  What do you mean by I requested and agreed?

13 What is that exactly?

14      A.   You called to establish service in your name

15 for your mother at her address.  When I say agreed, you

16 gave me all the information that I needed to provide the

17 service in your name at that address.  You --

18      Q.   Isn't it true that you --

19      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Could you let her finish?

20 BY THE WITNESS:

21      A.   You gave me your Social Security number, any

22 other information that I needed.  When I asked you where

23 you wanted to be billed, you provided me with all of

24 that information over the phone.

25      Q.   You're saying that I gave you my Social
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1 Security number over the phone?

2      A.   Yes, you did.

3      Q.   And you just simply asked me for it for

4 purposes of establishing a new account?

5      A.   That is how we establish all new accounts with

6 all customers, we need to get their Social Security

7 number.

8      MS. EDWARDS:  Your Honor, I'm not at this point

9 sure --

10      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Do you have any more questions for

11 this lady?

12      MS. EDWARDS:  I don't.

13      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  So then your

14 cross-examination of the witness is completed?

15      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Did she answer that?

16      JUDGE HILLIARD:  I think she's deciding.

17      MS. EDWARDS:  Thank you, your Honor, I am deciding,

18 because I have other questions but I need my documents

19 to -- I will have further questions for this witness,

20 your Honor, when I have the documents in front of me.

21 And I apologize, but I don't have those bills in front

22 of me to deal with this.

23           Further, your Honor, the supervisor at issue

24 here is not Ms. Rios at the table.  I may need to ask

25 for the appearance of yet another person from ComEd
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1 because this is not the person that I spoke with

2 regarding this matter, and I'm for sure of that.  Only

3 but for, your Honor --

4      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Judge --

5      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Let her finish.

6      MS. EDWARDS:  -- the fact that I've moved and

7 documents are kind of not conveniently placed am I at

8 this situation sitting at this table today.  But, your

9 Honor, I wanted to ask that I be allowed to review those

10 notes and ask for the appearance of the supervisor that

11 I spoke to on the telephone relative to this problem

12 well before -- I'm sorry, in a three-way conversation

13 with Mr. Ruiz.

14      JUDGE HILLIARD:  And what purpose would that serve?

15      MS. EDWARDS:  Again, this person is stating that I

16 called her to request that they put service in my name

17 and at no time was that the case.  The other supervisor

18 was asked for because they refused to put the account in

19 my mom's name and that was the topic of the conversation

20 in terms of why that was, which is germane to my

21 complaint.  We talked about age, we talked about income,

22 we talked about things that made it clear to us at the

23 time that the reasons that they were rejecting her

24 application.

25      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  Ms. Rios, is there a -- was
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1 part of your conversation with Ms. Edwards or is there a

2 document that indicates what the problem was putting

3 service in Willie Edwards' name?

4      THE WITNESS:  Well, I did not speak with her

5 mother.  When they called our regular call center at

6 ComEd, they'll speak with a regular representative.  I

7 can't speak to what may have been told to Willie Edwards

8 or Joyce Edwards there.  When they called the Commission

9 who in turn calls ComEd, we try to resolve whatever

10 issues that they may have.

11      JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.  So my question is is

12 there any document or were you party to a conversation

13 where there was discussion of why Willie Edwards

14 couldn't have an account in her own name?

15      THE WITNESS:  No.

16      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Could I ask a question?

17      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Is there any evidence that you

18 want to introduce regarding why Willie Edwards -- why

19 was there difficulty putting an account in Willie

20 Edwards' name?

21      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  When you say "evidence", Judge,

22 what are you referring to?

23      JUDGE HILLIARD:  I'm just asking if you have any --

24 if you're going to address, if you have any witness or

25 any paper that has any bearing on her contention that
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1 Willie Edwards was essentially refused service in her

2 own name.

3      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I guess I could ask some questions

4 of Ms. Rios in that regard.

5      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  Why don't you.

6      MS. EDWARDS:  Your Honor, I would object.  Ms. Rios

7 was not privy to the conversations before --

8      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Well, see what the questions are.

9 You can object to the individual question if there's a

10 reason to object.

11      MS. EDWARDS:  Yes, sir.  Thank you.

12      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  May I proceed, Judge?

13      JUDGE HILLIARD:  You can, but keep in mind that

14 she's already told me that she doesn't know anything

15 about why the account wasn't in the other lady's name.

16                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION

17 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

18      Q.   In order to establish an electric account at

19 ComEd, does a person seeking service have to call in and

20 request service in that person's name?

21      A.   Yes.

22      Q.   Are you aware of Willie Edwards ever calling

23 in to establish service at the Ring Road address?

24      A.   I am not aware of that.

25      Q.   Okay.  And in establishing service, electric
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1 service, a ComEd service, is age a determination as to

2 whether someone is accepted or rejected for service?

3      A.   No.

4      Q.   So in order for someone to establish service

5 that person would have to do what in order to establish

6 service with Commonwealth Edison Company?

7      A.   They would call the call center.  Once a

8 representative answers, they would ask them for their

9 first name and last name, Social Security number.  The

10 representative will usually verify if they owe any money

11 at a prior address.  As long as they do not owe any

12 money at a prior address, we will establish service for

13 them at whatever address they request.  Per different

14 customers, sometimes a deposit is requested, and that is

15 it.

16      Q.   And would Commonwealth Edison Company ever

17 request a lease to establish service at a particular

18 address?

19      A.   In certain situations we may request a lease

20 but it's not normal protocol.

21      Q.   And when you had the three-way conversation

22 with Ms. Edwards, you did not request that Ms. Edwards

23 supply a lease for the Ring Road address, did you?

24      A.   I did not.

25      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have nothing else, Judge.
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1           I would again move into evidence ComEd

2 Exhibits 1 and 2.

3      JUDGE HILLIARD:  These are normal business records

4 kept in the normal course of business; is that right?

5      THE WITNESS:  Yes.

6      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Are they true and accurate copies

7 of ComEd's records?

8      THE WITNESS:  Yes.

9      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Over the objection of the

10 complainant and subject to counter-documentary evidence

11 that you indicated you're going to present, these

12 documents will be admitted into the record.

13           Now, is there anything else you need to do

14 today?

15      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I don't believe so.

16      MS. EDWARDS:  Your Honor?

17      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Yes, ma'am.

18      MS. EDWARDS:  I would like to cross-examine

19 Ms. Rios on her last testimony that she just provided.

20      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  Go ahead.

21      MS. EDWARDS:  Thank you, sir.

22                  RECROSS-EXAMINATION

23 BY MS. EDWARDS:

24      Q.   Ms. Rios, are you aware that there were

25 conversations with Commonwealth Edison and Willie
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1 Edwards well before March 6th, 2012?

2      A.   No.

3      MS. EDWARDS:  Okay.  I don't have any other

4 questions, your Honor.

5      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  All right.  Now, do you

6 have an objection to bring in any other supervisor?

7      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  What name is the name of the

8 supervisor?  We have no record of anything like that.

9      MS. EDWARDS:  Your Honor, I have notes with that

10 person's name.  I understand there's a nationality

11 difference here, your Honor, so I know for a fact that I

12 can find the name and there is another person.

13           Ms. Rios has already testified that she and I

14 never spoke before March 6th.

15      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Right.

16      MS. EDWARDS:  The Commission notes will tell you

17 that phone calls and conversation did occur well before

18 March 6th and after.

19      JUDGE HILLIARD:  I'm not sure what it is that

20 conversations with anybody else --

21      MS. EDWARDS:  Here's what that would bring, your

22 Honor, to the table.  The fact again, Commonwealth

23 Edison has never provided us with an explanation written

24 in terms of why it is they rejected Willie Edwards'

25 application.
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1      JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.  Well, the lady

2 testified that in the conversation you had with her she

3 asked your mother to come to the phone to confirm that

4 she wanted service in her name and that she was

5 unavailable for whatever reason.

6      MS. EDWARDS:  No, the telephone calls Willie

7 Edwards made herself; she wouldn't need to come to the

8 phone, she was right there.

9      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Judge, this is way beyond hearsay.

10      JUDGE HILLIARD:  I'm sorry, but she's deceased --

11      MS. EDWARDS:  Yes, she is.

12      JUDGE HILLIARD:  -- and conversations that she had

13 with Commonwealth Edison are going to be barred by the

14 Dead Man's Act.

15      MS. EDWARDS:  Sure.  But, your Honor, the fact is

16 is that Ms. Rios has testified she has no knowledge of

17 the communications between Commonwealth Edison, the

18 Commerce Commission, and myself with the exception of

19 one telephone call on one day.

20      JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.  The issue here in

21 regard to your mother's bill is whether or not you asked

22 to have the bill put in your name.

23      MS. EDWARDS:  No, sir.  The issue here is that they

24 rejected her based on her age and based on the fact that

25 she was on a set income, your Honor, and those



69

1 conversations were had with the Commerce Commission and

2 Commonwealth Edison and not with this person.

3      JUDGE HILLIARD:  You made a presentation here today

4 about the history of the complaint.  You did not

5 indicate during your testimony that she was denied

6 because of her fixed income.  You just said that she was

7 denied service.  You didn't say exactly.  Now how are

8 you going to prove that at this point in time?

9      MS. EDWARDS:  Thank you, your Honor.  With the

10 supervisor that we spoke to we went in detail and talked

11 about this on the telephone.

12      JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.  You're going to have

13 to come up with a name of a particular person, you send

14 it to Mr. Goldstein, and we're going to set a date for a

15 subsequent hearing at which time you're going to bring

16 in the entirety of your documentary evidence, what your

17 going to supply to Mr. Goldstein two weeks prior to the

18 hearing, so that he can prepare responses or whatever is

19 appropriate to that.  Do you understand?

20      MS. EDWARDS:  And I would ask the same

21 consideration from Mr. Goldstein with respect to any

22 exhibits he plans to offer that I haven't seen.

23      JUDGE HILLIARD:  That's fine.  I agree.  All right.

24 Let's set a date.  How long is it going to take you to

25 get your documentation together and your written notice
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1 to Mr. Goldstein about the person you want to bring in?

2      MS. EDWARDS:  Your Honor, I'd ask for three weeks

3 to four weeks, your Honor, for the next hearing date.

4      JUDGE HILLIARD:  How about October 17th?

5      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Judge, we have an evidentiary

6 hearing.

7      JUDGE HILLIARD:  You know what.  This isn't going

8 to work out.  We're going to have to take more time.

9 How long is it going to take you to get your documents

10 together and get them to Mr. Goldstein?  Is that going

11 to take you three or four weeks?

12      MS. EDWARDS:  Yes, sir, only because -- I'll

13 explain again -- the move and trying to --

14      JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.  So you want three or

15 four weeks to serve Mr. Goldstein with the notice of who

16 it is you want to come in and --

17      MS. EDWARDS:  Yes, please.

18      JUDGE HILLIARD:  -- and you're going to provide him

19 with copies of your documents by that time?

20      MS. EDWARDS:  Yes, sir.

21      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  So both sides -- I'll give

22 you -- If you have any response to documents you want to

23 produce, Mr. Goldstein, how much time do you need for

24 that.

25      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Maybe two weeks after I see the
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1 documents from Ms. Edwards.

2      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  So it's going to be

3 October 17th for Ms. Edwards.  It's going to be

4 October 31st for Mr. Goldstein.  And we're going to have

5 a hearing when?

6      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  November 19th, Judge?

7      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Does that work for you,

8 Ms. Edwards?

9      MS. EDWARDS:  Yes, sir.

10      JUDGE HILLIARD:  10:00 o'clock?

11      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  10:00 o'clock is fine.

12      MS. EDWARDS:  Your Honor, an 11:00 o'clock would be

13 best for me based on my employment.

14      JUDGE HILLIARD:  All right.  11:00 o'clock

15 November 19th.

16           Okay.  If I didn't say it, Commonwealth Edison

17 Exhibits 1 and 2 are admitted into the record.

18           So we're done for today?

19      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes, we are.

20      JUDGE HILLIARD:  Okay.  Thank you.

21      MS. EDWARDS:  Thank you, your Honor.

22      MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you, Judge.

23                     (The hearing was continued to

24                      November 19th, 2013,

25                      11:00 o'clock a.m.)
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